

Ravenscroft Medical Centre

Inspection report

166-168 Golders Green Road London NW11 8BB Tel: 02084552477 www.ravenscroftmedicalcentre.co.uk

Date of inspection visit: 16 March 2022 Date of publication: 05/05/2022

This report describes our judgement of the quality of care at this service. It is based on a combination of what we found when we inspected, information from our ongoing monitoring of data about services and information given to us from the provider, patients, the public and other organisations.

Ratings

Overall rating for this location	Good	
Are services safe?	Good	
Are services effective?	Requires Improvement	
Are services caring?	Good	
Are services responsive to people's needs?	Good	
Are services well-led?	Good	

Overall summary

We carried out an announced inspection at Ravenscroft Medical Centre on 16 March 2022. All key questions were rated good apart from 'effective'. We rated 'effective' as requires improvement because we found the care for patients with long-term conditions required improvement (specifically asthma and hypothyroidism). The practice was responsive to these findings and provided evidence immediately following the inspection that actions were taken to begin to improve the care for patients with asthma and hypothyroidism. Overall, the practice is rated as Good.

Safe - Good

Effective - Requires Improvement

Caring - Good

Responsive – Good

Well-led - Good

The full reports for previous inspections can be found by selecting the 'all reports' link for Ravenscroft Medical Centre on our website at www.cqc.org.uk

Why we carried out this inspection

We carried out an inspection as the practice had changed management in 2019, this was the first inspection under the new management.

How we carried out the inspection

Throughout the pandemic CQC has continued to regulate and respond to risk. However, taking into account the circumstances arising as a result of the pandemic, and in order to reduce risk, we have conducted our inspections differently. This inspection was carried out in a way which enabled us to spend a minimum amount of time on site. This was with consent from the provider and in line with all data protection and information governance requirements. This included:

- Conducting staff interviews using video conferencing
- Completing clinical searches on the practice's patient records system and discussing findings with the provider
- Reviewing patient records to identify issues and clarify actions taken by the provider
- · Requesting evidence from the provider
- Short site visit

Our findings

We based our judgement of the quality of care at this service on a combination of:

What we found when we inspected, information from our ongoing monitoring of data about services and information from the provider, patients, the public and other organisations. We have rated this practice as 'Good' overall.

We found that:

2 Ravenscroft Medical Centre Inspection report 05/05/2022

Overall summary

- Whilst long-term conditions were generally well managed, we found improvement was required for the management of asthma and hypothyroidism.
- The practice's performance for childhood immunisations was lower than the national targets. The practice had already begun to make improvements in this area and provided evidence of improvements during the inspection.
- The practice completed a number of risk assessments to keep the premises safe, however the practice had not completed a fire risk assessment within the last 12 months.
- Although the practice used several methods to identify carers, the number of carers identified was less than one percent of the patient population.
- Whilst there were effective systems in place for managing patient safety alerts and safeguarding, fail safes were required for both systems.
- When something went wrong, there was an appropriate, thorough review that involved all relevant staff. Lessons were learned and communicated to support improvement.
- Services were planned and delivered in a way that met the needs of the local population.
- Patient satisfaction was in line with national targets.
- Leadership, governance and practice management arrangements promoted the delivery of high-quality, person-centred care.

Whilst we found no breaches of regulations, the provider **should**:

- Continue to improve the treatment of asthma and hypothyroidism.
- Continue to improve childhood immunisations.
- Continue to risk assess the safety of the premises, including completing a fire risk assessment every 12 months
- Look at ways to increase the number of patients identified as carers.
- Continue to review the systems for safeguarding and management of patient safety alerts to ensure there are effective fail safes in place.

Details of our findings and the evidence supporting our ratings are set out in the evidence tables.

Dr Rosie Benneyworth BM BS BMedSci MRCGP Chief Inspector of Primary Medical Services and Integrated Care

Our inspection team

Our inspection team included:

- GP Specialist Advisor that conducted remote clinical reviews and staff interviews on 16 March 2022.
- CQC Inspector completed a short site visit on 16 March 2022.

Background to Ravenscroft Medical Centre

Ravenscroft Medical Centre is located at 166-168 Golders Green Road, London, NW11 8BB. The practice provides NHS primary care services to approximately 5600 patients. The practice was registered with the Care Quality Commission in December 2019 to carry out the following regulated activities: diagnostic and screening procedures, treatment of disease, disorder or injury, maternity and midwifery service, and family planning.

The practice is situated in a two-story building and has seven clinical consultation rooms in use. There are four consultation rooms on the ground floor and three consultation rooms on the first floor. The first floor is accessible by stairs and a lift.

The practice population is in the seventh less deprived decile in England. The practice population of children and older people is below the CCG and national averages and the practice population of working age people is significantly above the national average.

The clinical team at the practice is made up of two GP Partners, four salaried GPs, on practice nurse and one phlebotomist. The non-clinical team at the practice is made up of a 10 members of staff including the practice manager. When the practice is closed patients are directed to contact the local out of hours provider.